
 
 

 
 

 Neuadd y Sir 
Y Rhadyr 
Brynbuga 

NP15 1GA 
 

Dydd Gwener, 9 Medi 2016 
 

Hysbysiad o gyfarfod 
 

Cyd-Bwyllgor Dethol 
 

Dydd Llun, 19eg Medi, 2016 at 2.00 pm 
Neuadd Y Sir, Y Rhadyr, Brynbuga, NP15 1GA 

 

AGENDA 
BYDD CYFARFOD CYN I AELODAU'R PWYLLGOR 30 COFNODION CYN I'R 

CYCHWYN Y CYFARFOD 
 

Eitem 
ddim 

Eitem Tudalennau 

1.   Etholiad Cadeirydd. 

 
 

2.   Apwyntiad Is-Gadeirydd. 

 
 

3.   Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb. 

 
 

4.   Datganiadau o Fuddiant 

 
 

5.   Dyfodol Sir Fynwy : Opsiwn Newydd ar gyfer Cyflenwi 
Gwasanaethau Ieuenctid Twristiaeth , Hamdden , Diwylliant a 
Arfaethedig. 

 

1 - 50 

 
Paul Matthews 

 
Prif Weithredwr 

 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

CYNGOR SIR FYNWY 
 

MAE CYFANSODDIAD Y PWYLLGOR FEL SY'N DILYN: 
 
 
Cynghorwyr Sir: R. Chapman 

D. Dovey 
A. Easson 
D. Edwards 
R. Edwards 
D. Evans 
P. Farley 
M Fowler (Parent Governor Representative) 
L. Guppy 
R. Harris 
B. Hayward 
M. Hickman 
D Hill 
S. Howarth 
D Hudson 
D. Jones 
P. Jones 
S. Jones 
P. Jordan 
K Plow (Association of School Governors) 
M. Powell 
V. Smith 
A. Watts 
P. Watts 
A. Webb 
S. White 
K. Williams 
A. Wintle 

 
Gwybodaeth Gyhoeddus 
 
Mynediad i gopïau papur o agendâu ac adroddiadau 
Gellir darparu copi o'r agenda hwn ac adroddiadau perthnasol i aelodau'r cyhoedd sy'n 
mynychu cyfarfod drwy ofyn am gopi gan Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ar 01633 644219. 
Dylid nodi fod yn rhaid i ni dderbyn 24 awr o hysbysiad cyn y cyfarfod er mwyn darparu 
copi caled o'r agenda hwn i chi. 
 
Edrych ar y cyfarfod ar-lein 
Gellir gweld y cyfarfod ar-lein yn fyw neu'n dilyn y cyfarfod drwy fynd i 
www.monmouthshire.gov.uk neu drwy ymweld â'n tudalen Youtube drwy chwilio am 
MonmouthshireCC. Drwy fynd i mewn i'r ystafell gyfarfod, fel aelod o'r cyhoedd neu i 
gymryd rhan yn y cyfarfod, rydych yn caniatáu i gael eich ffilmio ac i ddefnydd posibl y 
delweddau a'r recordiadau sain hynny gan y Cyngor. 
 
Y Gymraeg 

http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/


 

Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawu cyfraniadau gan aelodau'r cyhoedd drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg 
neu'r Saesneg. Gofynnwn gyda dyledus barch i chi roi 5 diwrnod o hysbysiad cyn y 
cyfarfod os dymunwch siarad yn Gymraeg fel y gallwn ddarparu ar gyfer eich anghenion. 
 



 

Nodau a Gwerthoedd Cyngor Sir Fynwy 
 
Cymunedau Cynaliadwy a Chryf 

 
Canlyniadau y gweithiwn i'w cyflawni 
 
Neb yn cael ei adael ar ôl 
 

 Gall pobl hŷn fyw bywyd da 

 Pobl â mynediad i dai addas a fforddiadwy 

 Pobl â mynediad a symudedd da 

 
Pobl yn hyderus, galluog ac yn cymryd rhan 
 

 Camddefnyddio alcohol a chyffuriau ddim yn effeithio ar fywydau pobl 

 Teuluoedd yn cael eu cefnogi 

 Pobl yn teimlo'n ddiogel 

 
Ein sir yn ffynnu 
 

 Busnes a menter 

 Pobl â mynediad i ddysgu ymarferol a hyblyg 

 Pobl yn diogelu ac yn cyfoethogi'r amgylchedd 

 
Ein blaenoriaethau 
 

 Ysgolion 

 Diogelu pobl agored i niwed 

 Cefnogi busnes a chreu swyddi 

 Cynnal gwasanaethau sy’n hygyrch yn lleol 

 
Ein gwerthoedd 
 

 Bod yn agored: anelwn fod yn agored ac onest i ddatblygu perthnasoedd ymddiriedus 

 Tegwch: anelwn ddarparu dewis teg, cyfleoedd a phrofiadau a dod yn sefydliad a 
adeiladwyd ar barch un at y llall. 

 Hyblygrwydd: anelwn fod yn hyblyg yn ein syniadau a'n gweithredoedd i ddod yn sefydliad 
effeithlon ac effeithiol. 

 Gwaith tîm: anelwn gydweithio i rannu ein llwyddiannau a'n methiannau drwy adeiladu ar 
ein cryfderau a chefnogi ein gilydd i gyflawni ein nodau. 

 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

1. PURPOSE: 

1.1 To propose a new Delivery Option for the Leisure, Tourism, Culture and Youth Services following 

an independent options appraisal by Anthony Collins Solicitors and seek agreement on the next 

steps. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 

2.1 It is recommended that Cabinet agrees the following: 

 To give full consideration to the appended Strategic Outline Case based on the independent 

findings of Anthony Collins Solicitors;  

 To agree the principle recommendation made by Anthony Collins which is to establish a new 

Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) based on a flexible group structure; 

 To agree the scope of the ADM and which services will be transferred at  inception and those 

Services which will be considered for future phases; 

 To continue the staff, community and service user consultation process;  

 To agree to the internal recruitment of a shadow core staffing structure to take the ADM 

process forward and establish the ADM;  

 To produce a draft business plan for the ADM for approval prior to establishment which will 

identify the additional funding required to finance any supplementary work. 

 

3. KEY ISSUES: 

BACKGROUND 

3.1 In 2014, Cabinet approved an initial investment of £30,000 to commission Amion Consulting to 

undertake a comprehensive review of the future options for our Cultural services.  The purpose 

of the review was to identify future delivery options with an overall objective of improving, 

sustaining and developing local services to enable them to become more self-reliant and resilient.  

During the review it became apparent that cultural services overlapped many of the wider tourism, 

leisure and culture services so rather than view cultural services independently, it made sense to 

view the inter-dependencies at a service wide and local level.  In addition, analysis of experiences 

of other local authorites with new operating models, has demonstrated that critical mass in 

achieving economies of scale, cross subsidisation and mutual support are critical success factors 

as well as an opportunity to rationalise service delivery. 

 

3.2 In October 2015 Cabinet approved the release of £60,000 from the Invest to Redesign fund to 

finance the supplementary work needed to mobilise the Leisure, Events, Youth and Outdoor 

Leisure services.  In addition, in May 2016 Cabinet approved the ‘Future Monmouthshire’ a 

strategic programme of ‘whole-authority’ work ‘to create the capacity and foresight to develop 

solutions to some of the county’s biggest challenges, this proposal forms part of this strategic 

programme.   

 

3.3 This report gives full consideration to the independent findings of Anthony Collins Solicitors, 

appointed to undertake the supplementary work for this proposal, as detailedin the appended 

Strategic Outline Case. 

SUBJECT: FUTURE MONMOUTHSHIRE: PROPOSED NEW DELIVERY 

OPTION FOR TOURISM, LEISURE, CULTURE AND YOUTH 

SERVICES 

MEETING: JOINT SELECT COMMITTEE  

DATE:   19TH SEPTEMBER 2016 

 

DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: All  

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



 

 

4. REASONS 

With increasingly constrained resources the Council needs to identify and consider new ways of 

working and operating in order to ‘maintain locally accessible services’ as the demand for local 

services continue to grow.  New options and operating models for service delivery are therefore 

required if the Authority is to become more effective and efficient.  The Council’s Tourism, Leisure, 

Culture, Outdoor Learning and Youth Service has a combined budget of £2.639m with 

approximately 441 staff. Although initially the services in scope included Community and Adult 

Education and Museums a deeper assessment of these services has concluded there is a 

significant amount of transformational work to be undertaken within the Council prior to their full 

consideration to include current service offer, premises, staffing ratios and funding. The list of 

services for this proposal therefore include: Leisure, Fitness and Outdoor Education; Youth 

services; Countryside services to include managing access to the countryside, visitor sites, 

biodiversity issues and outdoor learning and play; Tourism Marketing, Development, Visitor 

Information provision and Events; and Management and marketing of Monmouthshire’s Visitor 

Attractions to include Caldicot Castle, Tintern Old Station and Shire Hall, Monmouth. 

 

Over the last four years these Services have contributed over £1.65m of revenue savings to the 

Council and generated £17 m of income.  However there are no more effiencies to be made and 

given the current period of austerity if these services are to remain in the Council the implications 

are shown in the table below: 

 

Year 
MTFP Allocation          

£000’s 
Expected Net Cost      

£000’s 
Funding Shortfall  

  £000's 

2016/17 2,639 2,902 263 

2017/18 2,598 2,906 308 

2018/19 2,554 2,919 365 

2019/20 2,509 2,934 425 

2020/21 2,462 2,945 483 

 
 Footnote – expected costs include; inflation at projected CPI rates, impact on demand of annual price increases of 2.5% 

and known current pressures 

 

The table shows a significant gap between the net costs of the services and the Medium Term 

Financial Plan (MTFP) allocation. The MTFP is currently showing a shortfall of 12% over the next 

four year period and is this was to be applied proportionally to all services would further increase 

the funding gap by 2020/21 to £542k. In order to meet the budget targets, there would need to be 

reduction in services for 2017/18 by 10% which rises to 20% in 2020/21.  This is the scale  of the 

huge challenge facing these Services given the increasing demands and expectations. 

 

4.1 The objectives of Anthony Collins have been to consider the right mix of Services and the best new 

Delivery Option  to help the Council address the projected £542k funding shortfall over the next 

four year period.  A full analysis of options (Appendix Three of the Strategic Outline Case) has 

resulted in four recommended Principle Delivery Options namely: 

 

 Delivery Option One:  Do Nothing 

 Delivery Option Two: Transform the Services ‘in house’ 

 Delivery Option Three:Move the Services into an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM); and 

 Delivery Option Four: Outsource the services to a third party. 
 

Page 2



The Pros and Cons of each of the four delivery options were then measured in order to assess the 

strategic, economic, commercial, financial and management case for change. In addition a wider 

analysis was undertaken, informed via a Due Diligence process. Best practice research was also 

carried out to find other Councils who have implemented innovative Delivery Options. In addition the 

Options were also assessed again their ability to meet the Council’s four key priorities whilst also 

providing enhanced opportunities to: 

 
• Increase flexibility and agility in responding to needs and change; 
• Freedom to market and trade its services; 
• Improve Services through innovation and a culture of enterprise; 
• Introduce lean processes that reduce duplication of effort and increase use of technology and 

self-service, making it easier for residents to access services and obtain information and advice; 
• Empower and motivate staff thus raising productivity; 
• Access funding and tax efficiencies currently outside the scope of the Council; and  
• Offer higher levels of engagement and achieve economies through collaboration and 

partnership. 
 

4.1 FINDINGS  

As one of the Council’s key priorities is to ‘maintain locally accessible services’ the options 

appraisal needed to assess which of the principle Delivery Options could create the potential for 

growth and sustainability for the services as well as an analysis of the legal and governance 

structures available and make recommendations on: 

o Growth and investment opportunities; 

o Skills gaps; 

o HR including TUPE and future pension arrangements; 

o Procurement routes for awarding services ;  

o Asset/leasehold transfer implications; 

o Stakeholder engagement to maximise staff, community and service user involvement. 

 

The result of the appraisal and subsequent recommendation from Anthony Collins is Delivery 

Option Three which is to to establish a new ADM for the TLC and Youth Services based on the 

financial savings and income generation potential that this offers as well as opportunity for the 

Council to still direct future Service delivery.This is based on the following observations: 

• Delivery Options one and two to ‘Do Nothing’ or ‘Transform in House’ are not viable as it will not 
allow the Council to meet its saving requirements.  The Council would therefore need to either to 
reallocate funds from other Services (putting extra pressure in other areas) or it would need to 
reduce Service delivery to allow the savings to be met; 

 
• Delivery Option four to ‘Outsource to a third party’ has some attractive qualities  however the 

market is likely to present a solution that will take time to implement, may only cherry pick certain 
Services and given future funding uncertainties, could be significantly inflexible.   

 
Delivery Option Three to ‘Establish a New ADM presents a radically new way of working for the 
Council but one which has been tried and tested in other Local Authority Areas.  Whilst there are 
risks, the ADM does present the best opportunity to sustain and potentially improve services 
during this period of financial uncertainty.  A successful move of the TLC and Youth Services to 
an ADM could also herald a way forward for other Council services with the advantage that 
structures and experience are already in place. 
 

4.2 Should the recommendation to establish an ADM be approved then the next steps would be as 
follows: 

 

 To establish a new ADM based on a flexible group structure; 

 To agree the scope of the ADM and which services will be transferred at  inception and those 

Services which will be considered for future phases; 

 To continue the staff, community and service user consultation process;  

Page 3



 To agree to the internal recruitment of a shadow core staffing structure to take the ADM 

process forward and establish the ADM;  

 To produce a draft business plan for the ADM for approval prior to establishment which will 

establish any funding required to finance any supplementary work needed to finalise this piece 

of work. 

 

In addition, at the point when the draft business plan for the ADM is presented for approval then some 

further key decisions will be required in relation to: 

 

 The level of control required by the Council; 

 The level of funding that will be required from the Council and the identification and availability of 

alternative funding; 

 The organisational support for combining these Services;  

 Whether assets are to be transferred or licensed to the ADM. 

  

4.4 In agreeing to establish the proposed flexible group structure the Council will also need to consider 

what type of vehicles (companies) will best serve its aims, a full list of which can be found in Appendix 

Three of the appended Strategic Outline Case.  The recommended options for the Council will be 

presented as part of the draft business plan to be submitted for approval early in 2017.   

 

 

 
 

                                                                       

 
 

 

 

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: 

The resource implications are two fold.  One is a further cash injection to complete the Anthony 

Collins commission and the second is the establishment of the interim management structure 

(Appendix B)  to take forward the ADM, recruited via internal secondments.  The cost of which 

will be determined once the candidates have been appointed. 

 

6. CONSULTEES 

Senior Leadership Team 

Cabinet  

 

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

Appendix A – Strategic Outline Case  

Appendix B -  Proposed Interim Management Structure  

Teckal

CharityTrading

MCC 

Page 4



Appendix C – Future Generations Evaluation 

 

 

8. FUTURE GENERATIONS IMPLICATIONS 

The completed Future Generations Evaluation can be found in Appendix C however the main 

positive and negative impacts of the proposal are as follows: 

The purpose of the proposed new Delivery Option is to ensure much valued local services are 

maintained and by their nature continue to provide employment, growth and an increasingly 

skilled workforce.  The proposed new Delivery Option will enable services to be kept open but 

with more community focus and coordination, helping knit communities together. Activities in 

establishing the ADM will require positive engagement and coordination with community 

focused services as well as income generation and investment in key aspects of the business 

to ensure the culture and business thrives.  Incorporated services will contribute greatly to our 

local culture, heritage and art with the promotion of activity, health and wellbeing forming part of 

its key drivers.   

 

9. AUTHORS: Cath Fallon – Head of Economy and Enterprise; Ian Saunders – Head of Tourism, 

Leisure and Culture; Marie Bartlett – Finance manager 

 

10. CONTACT DETAILS:    

 

E-mail: Cathfallon@monmouthshire.gov.uk  

 Iansaunders@monmouthshire.gov.uk 

 Mariebartlett@monmouthshire.gov.uk 

Tel:   01633 648316/ 07557 190969/ 01633 644292 

    

 

Page 5

mailto:Cathfallon@monmouthshire.gov.uk
mailto:Iansaunders@monmouthshire.gov.uk
mailto:Mariebartlett@monmouthshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Strategic Outline Case  
 
Future Monmouthshire:  Proposed New Delivery Option for Monmouthshire County Council’s 
Tourism, Leisure and Cultural and Youth Services  
 
Authors: Cath Fallon, Head of Innovation and Economy 
  Ian Saunders, Head of Tourism, Leisure and Culture 
  Marie Bartlett, Finance Manager 
  Tracey Thomas, Youth and Community Manager 
Consultants: Anthony Collins, Solicitors 
Date:  16th August 2016 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
Contents: 
1. Executive Summary 
2. Strategic Context and the case for Change 

2.1. Background 
2.2. The scale of the TLC Services challenge 

3. Developing a new operating model – proposal scope 
3.1 Proposal Objectives 
3.2 In Scope Services 

4. Project Methodology 
4.1Baseline Services Assessment 
4.2Delivery Options 

5. The Vision for a new Delivery Option 
5.1. The Vision 
5.2. How would a new Delivery Option work? 
5.3. Customer Experience 
5.4. Culture Change 
5.5. Staff Teams 
5.6. Working with Partner Organisations  
5.7. Service Users 

6. Assessment of Delivery Options and their Potential Impact 
6.1. Ability to meet Monmouthshire County Council and National Strategic Objectives 
6.2. Economic Case for change  
6.3. Commercial Opportunities  
6.4. Staff Satisfaction  
6.5. Financial Savings 
6.6. Management Case  

7. Overall assessment of Delivery Options 
8. Recommendations and Next Steps 

8.1. Recommendations 
8.2. Next Steps 

 

Page 7



2 

 

Strategic Outline Case  
 
Proposed New Delivery Option for Monmouthshire County Council’s Tourism, Leisure and Cultural Services 
 

1. Executive Summary 
Local Authorities across the UK are facing unprecedented financial pressures.  Monmouthshire County 
Council’s central grant from the Welsh Government is reducing and its current projections suggest that it 
needs to find circa 12% or £14m of savings over the next four years.  The Council will therefore not be able to 
continue to meet the needs of its service users unless it makes significant changes to the way it delivers its 
services and takes some tough decisions to live within its means. 
 
In 2014, Cabinet approved a comprehensive review of the Council’s Cultural services to identify future 
delivery options with an overall objective of improving, sustaining and developing local services to enable 
them to become more self-reliant and resilient.  It soon became apparent that not only did cultural services 
overlap many of the wider tourism and leisure services but analysis of experiences of other local authorities 
with new operating models demonstrated that critical mass in achieving economies of scale, cross 
subsidisation and mutual support are all critical success factors as well as an opportunity to rationalise 
service delivery. So, in October 2015, Cabinet approved the supplementary work needed to assess the 
current portfolio of Leisure, Events, Youth and Outdoor Leisure (TLC) Services and in December 2015, 
Anthony Collins Solicitors were appointed to undertake an independent options appraisal of the in-scope 
services.  
 
The Tourism, Leisure and Culture (TLC) Services in scope include: 
 
• Leisure, Fitness and Outdoor Education  
• Youth services provision  
• Countryside services  
• Tourism Marketing, Development, Visitor Information provision and Arts, Events; and 
• Management and marketing of Monmouthshire’s Visitor Attractions  
 
Other services currently in scope but not being considered as part of this initial proposal include Community 
Adult Education and Museums.  Although initially considered, a deeper assessment of these services has 
concluded that there is a considerable amount of service transformational work to be undertaken within the 
Council, prior to full consideration.  This work will consider current service offer, premises, staffing ratios and 
funding.   
 
With combined budget/costs of circa £2.639m and approximately 441 staff, these Services have contributed 
over £1.65m of revenue savings and generated £17m of income over the last four years and there are no 
more efficiencies to be made. Given the current period of austerity, if these services remain within the 
Council, the Medium Term Financial Plan has a four year funding shortfall of 12% which if applied 
proportionally to all Services, would further increase the funding gap for the services in scope by 2020/21 to 
£542k. In order to meet these budget targets, there would need to be reductions by up to 20% by 2020/21.  
This is the scale of the huge challenge facing these services given increasing demands and expectations. 
 
The objectives of this proposal have therefore been to consider the right mix of Services to be included and 
the best Delivery Option to help the Council address the projected £542k funding shortfall over the next four 
year period and it may not be possible to maintain all of the services in their current form whatever option is 
chosen. Anthony Collins identified and considered a range of Delivery Options for the Services and from this 
recommended four Principle Delivery Options for the Services have been identified, namely:  
 
• Delivery Option One:   Do Nothing 

Page 8



3 

 

• Delivery Option Two: Transform the Services ‘in house’ 
• Delivery Option Three: Move the Services into an Alternative Delivery Model; and 
• Delivery Option Four: Outsource the services to a third party. 
 
The pros and cons of each of the four delivery options were then measured in order to assess the strategic, 
economic, commercial, financial and management case for change. In addition a wider analysis was 
undertaken, informed via a Due Diligence process. Best practice research was also carried out to find other 
Councils who have implemented innovative Delivery Options. In addition the Options were also assessed 
against their ability to meet the Council’s four key priorities whilst also providing enhanced opportunities to: 
 
• Increase flexibility and agility in responding to needs and change; 
• Freedom to market and trade its services; 
• Improve Services through innovation and a culture of enterprise; 
• Introduce lean processes that reduce duplication of effort and increase use of technology and self-

service, making it easier for residents to access services and obtain information and advice; 
• Empower and motivate staff thus raising productivity; 
• Access funding and tax efficiencies currently outside the scope of the Council; and  
• Offer higher levels of engagement and achieve economies through collaboration and partnership. 
 
The result of the assessment and subsequent recommendation from Anthony Collins Solicitors is Delivery 
Option Three which is to establish a new Alternative Model for the TLC Services. This is based on the financial 
savings and income generation potential that this offers as well as opportunities for the Council to still direct 
future Service delivery. 
 
This is based on the following observations: 
• Delivery Options one and two to ‘Do Nothing’ or ‘Transform in House’ are not viable as it will not 

allow the Council to meet its saving requirements.  The Council would therefore need to either to 
reallocate funds from other Services (putting extra pressure in other areas) or it would need to 
reduce Service delivery to allow the savings to be met; 

 
• Delivery Option four to ‘Outsource to a third party’ has some attractive qualities  however the 

market is likely to present a solution that will take time to implement, may only cherry pick certain 
Services and given future funding uncertainties, could be significantly inflexible. This option does also 
not guarantee locally provided services. 

 
Delivery Option Three to ‘Establish a New Alternative Delivery Model’ presents a radically new way of 
working for the Council but one which has been tried and tested in other Local Authority Areas.  Whilst there 
are risks, the ADM does present the best opportunity to sustain and potentially improve services during this 
period of financial uncertainty.  A successful move of the TLC Services to an ADM could also herald a way 
forward for other Council services with the advantage that structures and experience are already in place. 
 
Should the recommendation to establish an ADM be approved then the next steps would be as follows: 
 
• To agree the principle recommendation made by Anthony Collins which is to establish a new 

Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) based on a group structure as detailed in Appendix Two; 
• To agree the scope of the ADM and which services will be transferred at inception and those Services 

which will be considered for future phases; 
• To continue the staff, community and service user consultation process;  
• To agree to the internal recruitment of a shadow core  structure to take the ADM process forward 

and establish the ADM;  
• To produce a draft business plan for the ADM for approval prior to establishment; and 

Page 9



4 

 

• To establish funding to finance the supplementary work needed to finalise this piece of work. 
2. Strategic Context and the case for Change 

 
2.1 Background 
In 2014, Cabinet approved a comprehensive review of the Council’s Cultural services.  The purpose being 
to identify future delivery options with an overall objective of improving, sustaining and developing local 
services to enable them to become more self-reliant and resilient.  It soon became apparent that not 
only did cultural services overlap many of the wider tourism and leisure services but analysis of 
experiences of other local authorities with new operating models demonstrated that critical mass in 
achieving economies of scale, cross subsidisation and mutual support are all critical success factors. 

 
In October 2015, Cabinet approved the supplementary work needed to assess the current portfolio of 
Leisure, Events, Youth and Outdoor Leisure (TLC) Services and in December 2015; Anthony Collins 
Solicitors were appointed to undertake an independent options appraisal of the in-scope services.  
 
2.2 The Scale of the TLC Services Challenge 
2.2.1 The need to find significant financial savings 
Local Authorities across the UK are facing unprecedented financial pressures.  The Council’s central grant 
from the Welsh Government is reducing and it current projections suggest that it needs to find circa 12% 
or £14m of savings over the next four years.  The Council will therefore not be able to continue to meet 
the needs of its service users unless it makes significant changes to the way it delivers its services and 
takes some tough decisions to live within its means.  
 
The Council currently provides tourism, leisure, cultural and youth services (the “Services”) which 
include:   
 
• Leisure, Fitness and Outdoor Education comprising of four on school site leisure centres and three 
outdoor education venues, two of which are Council owned; 
  
• Youth services provision across five sites to include the delivery of open access activities, an 
education programme, counselling services, etc.; 
 
• Countryside services to include managing access to the countryside, visitor sites, biodiversity issues 
and outdoor learning and play; 
 
• Tourism Marketing, Development, Visitor Information provision, Arts and Events; and 
 
• Management and marketing of Monmouthshire’s Visitor Attractions to include Caldicot Castle, 
Tintern Old Station and Shire Hall, Monmouth. 
 
With combined budget/costs of around £2.639m and approximately 441 staff, these Services have 
contributed over £1.65m of revenue savings and generated £17m of income over the last four years.  
However there are no more efficiencies and given the current period of austerity if these services are to 
remain in the Council, the implications are detailed in Table One that follows, demonstrating a significant 
gap between the net costs of the services and the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) allocation.  
 
The MTFP is currently showing a shortfall of 12% over the next four year period and if this was to be 
applied proportionally to all Services would result in a further increase in the funding gap by 2020/21 to 
£542k. Therefore in order to meet the budget targets, there would need to be reduction in the cost of 
services for 2017/18 by 10%, rising to 20% in 2020/21. 
 

Page 10



5 

 

The assets included within the scope of this report currently has a maintenance backlog of £4.78m which 
indicates there is a significant requirement for investment. The ability to access and service capital 
requirements is a key requirement in sustaining service delivery and avoiding a declining asset base. 
 
Table One:  Service Funding Shortfall  
 

Year MTFP Allocation          £000 Expected Net Cost      £000 Funding Shortfall   £000's 

2016/17 2,639 2,902 263 

2017/18 2,598 2,906 308 

2018/19 2,554 2,919 365 

2019/20 2,509 2,934 425 

2020/21 2,462 2,945 483 

 
• Footnote – expected costs include; inflation at projected CPI rates, impact on demand of annual price 
increases of 2.5% and known current pressures. This does not take account of the impact of the 
significant investment required to maintain existing services. 
 
2.2.2 Growth in Demand for the Services 
However, declining budgets are just one of the challenges for the Council.  Other challenges include 
demography, localism, the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act and Inequality.  Using 
demography as an example, life expectancies are rising across the country leading to an increased 
demand for public services.  In Monmouthshire: 
 

 The number of over 85 year olds will increase by 184% by 2036 yet the number of under 18s will 
decrease by 19% by 2036.  This increased life expectancy will drive a greater complexity of need 
as older people are more likely to have medical conditions.  And, with a decreasing number of 
younger residents there is likely to be a decrease in the potential for growth of the working age 
population, leading to a decrease in council tax income to pay for services. 

 In addition both adult and childhood obesity is increasing in Wales, which will have a long term 
impacts on quality of life placing further pressure on public services. 

 
2.2.3 Requirements of the Well Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
The Well Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, introduced by the Minister for Communities and 
Tackling Poverty sets out a framework for Welsh Public Authorities requiring them to show how they are 
working towards well-being goals that will ensure the needs of the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.  The Act puts in place seven 
well-being goals that public bodies must work to achieve and take into consideration across all their 
decision-making as detailed in illustration one that follows.  As a direct result of the Act any plans for the 
future delivery of Services will need to ensure that that the seven well-being goals are addressed. 
 

Page 11



6 

 

Illustration One:  Seven Well-being Goals of the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

 
. 
2.2.4 Rising Expectations of Service Users 

Advances in customer services and technology also mean Service Users have higher expectations of public 
service and increasingly expect to: 

 Interact with services 24/7 and access information and services through self-service platforms; 
Make appointments for face to face meetings at a time and location convenient to them; 

 Receive a highly personalised service that addresses them as an individual and involves them in 
decision making; 

 Experience a joined up service, both across Council Services and between the Council and its 
partner organisations. 
 

All of this means that Service users will not be content with the Council’s current service offer in the future.  
Although these advances will present opportunities for the Council to use new technologies to meet people’s 
needs more effectively there is a clearly a need to ensure that every aspect of the Services are fit for future 
purpose. 

 
2.2.5 How this Proposal will address the TLC Challenge  

The Council has already made a number of changes to address these challenges focussing on improving 
efficiency, effectiveness and value for money in the Tourism Leisure and Culture (TLC) Services.  For example: 
 

 A successful ‘Invest to Save’ programme in Leisure Services whereby an investment of £250,000 in  
fitness suites lead to a return of £100,000 in the same year enabling on going and sustained growth 
in leisure memberships; 

Page 12



7 

 

 Increasing commercial drive through innovation and enterprise whilst also increasing fitness levels, 
for example the introduction of the ‘My Wellness’ Cloud accounts; 

 Optimising use of assets by broadening use such as offering visitor attractions as wedding venues 
and concert venues; 

 Developing new and existing partnerships such as working with the Aneurin Bevan Trust by 
increasing participation in the National Exercise Referral scheme; 

 Regular data and performance monitoring to measure success and inform business decisions leading 
to enhanced service delivery and customer benefits; and 

 Innovation through better use of technology such as encouraging more Service users to take up 
Direct Debit payments for services  
 

These changes have helped to deliver £1.65m of revenue savings and generated £17m of income however 
the Council has approached the limit of savings that can be achieved   There is therefore a need to consider 
new ways to deliver these Services whilst also ensuring that it continues to provide opportunities for local 
people to lead more active lifestyles.    
 
In October 2015 Cabinet approved supplementary work to mobilise the TLC Services within the context that 
any proposals would still ensure that it continued to address its four key priorities of Education, Protecting 
Vulnerable People, Supporting Enterprise, Entrepreneurship and job creation and Maintaining locally 
accessible service.  Appendix One details how the Services currently deliver against the Council’s priorities. 
 
Any proposal for a new Service Delivery model would therefore need to ensure that it not only continues to 
meet the Council’s priorities but also provides enhanced opportunities to: 

 Increase flexibility and agility in responding to needs and change; 

 Freedom to market and trade its services; 

 Improve Services through innovation and a culture of enterprise; 

 Introduce new processes that reduce duplication of effort and increase use of technology and self-
service, making it easier for residents to access services and obtain information and advice; 

 Empower and motivate staff thus raising productivity; 

 Access funding and tax efficiencies currently outside the scope of the Council; and  

 Offer higher levels of engagement through collaboration. 
 
Cabinet also agreed this work would consider a full range of Delivery Options which include: 

 Doing Nothing; 

 Transforming the Service in House; 

 Moving the Services into an Alternative Delivery Model; and 

 Outsourcing the Services to a Third Party. 
 

3. Developing a new Delivery Option 
 

3.1 Proposal Objectives  
The objectives of the proposal are to: 

1. Consider the right mix of Services to be included in the proposal 
2. To identify the best Delivery Option applying the lessons learned throughout the development of the 

proposal. 
This Proposal needs to identify the best possible delivery option to help the Council address the projected 
£542k funding shortfall over the next four year period. This document presents the findings from the first 
phase of work undertaken by Anthony Collins Solicitors. 

Page 13



8 

 

3.2 In Scope Services 
The Tourism, Leisure and Culture Services in scope for this proposal include: 
 
• Leisure, Fitness and Outdoor Education  
• Youth services provision  
• Countryside services  
• Tourism Marketing, Development, Visitor Information provision, Arts and Events; and 
• Management and marketing of Monmouthshire’s Visitor Attractions  
 
Other services currently in scope but not being considered as part of this initial proposal include Community 
Adult Education and Museums.  Although initially considered, a deeper assessment of these services has 
concluded that there is a considerable amount of service transformational work to be undertaken within the 
Council, prior to full consideration.  This work will consider current service offer, premises, staffing ratios and 
funding.   
 
It makes sense to bring these services together as having undertaken a service assessment, it is clear there 
are distinct synergies amongst them, confirming the rationale  that bringing them together as one entity 
would have been benefits as illustrated in Table Two below :  
 
Table Two:  Service Assessment  

Service Objectives  Strengths & Opportunities  Weaknesses and Risks 

Supporting an active and healthy 
Monmouthshire and a healthy lifestyle. 

Excellent facilities with a wide 
range of activities & 
programmes. 

Deteriorating condition of key sites & 
infrastructure and reducing staff 
capacity to address these issues. 

Raising the profile of Monmouthshire 
regionally, nationally and 
internationally with a view to 
increasing visitor spend and extending 
the visitor season. 

Professional industry qualified 
& knowledgeable staff with a 
customer focused approach. 

Investment needed to keep visitor offer 
fresh & encourage return visits.  

A desire to become more financially 
sustainable by increasing visitor 
numbers, adding value to existing 
products and developing new products 
to attract new markets. 

Proven ability to draw in 
funding with wider 
opportunities to develop joint 
funding bids with in scope 
Services to reduce duplication 
and maximise value against 
resource deployed. 

Competition from neighbouring local 
authorities & private facilitators. 

Providing learning experiences to 
enable young people to fulfil their 
potential as empowered individuals & 
members of communities. 

Opportunities for coordinated & 
complementary marketing & 
new product development as 
part of a wider Monmouthshire 
Visitor Attractions & Museums 
Offer. 

Pressure on budgets (expenditure), 
efficiency savings, inflated income 
targets. 

Supporting volunteering to increase 
community participation levels and 
enhance service delivery. 

Opportunities for further 
exploration of commercial 
concessions & partnerships & 
additional complementary 
services to enhance income 
streams. 

Local Authority political & decision 
making processes can hamper 
innovation & creativity. 

 
However the full scope of the Delivery Option will be decided at a later date, informed by which Services the 
Council will choose to release for transformation.  Therefore the scope of the Delivery Option is likely to 
extend beyond the priority services for reform in the future and as such will need to be flexible enough to 
incorporate any future Service change proposals. 
 

Page 14



9 

 

4. Proposal Methodology 
 

4.1 Baseline Service Assessment 
A baseline profile of in scope Services has been developed by Anthony Collins and associates bringing 
together information via a Due Diligence process which has included an analysis of: 
 

 Service plans and budgets; 

 Latent demand surveys for leisure services; 

 Audience development and business plans for visitor attractions;  

 Staff skills and gaps analysis; 

 HR implications assessment including TUPE and future pension arrangements; 

 VAT and tax implications summary; 

 An assessment of legal structures and associated governance arrangements; 

 State Aids Assessment;  

 Growth and investment and income generation pipeline assessment; and 

 Asset/leasehold transfer implications; and 

 A full programme of staff and Service user engagement (see Appendix Two). 
 
Best practice research was also carried out to find other Councils who have implemented innovative Delivery 
Options focusing on the in scope Services including Vivacity in Peterborough, Newportlive and Torfaen 
Leisure Trust.   
 

4.2 Delivery Options  
In identifying a possible delivery option Anthony Collins identified and considered a range of Delivery Options 
for the Services, the full list of which can be found in Appendix Three.  From this list Anthony Collins 
Solicitors have recommended four Principle Delivery Options for the Services have been identified, namely:  
 

 Delivery Option One:   Do Nothing 

 Delivery Option Two: Transform the Services ‘in house’ 

• Delivery Option Three: Move the Services into an Alternative Delivery Model; and 
• Delivery Option Four: Outsource the services to a third party. 
 
Table Three below provides a more detailed overview of these four Principle Delivery Options: 
 
Table Three:  Principle Delivery Options 

Delivery Option  Description  Type of Organisation 

One: 
 
Services remain in house  

Services will continue to operate ‘in 
house’ in accordance with the existing 
service delivery model 

In House 

Two: 
 
Transform the Services in house  

The broad service delivery model remains 
the same however the Council would 
need to engage in a full service review to 
identify how the services could be 
delivered more efficiently and effectively 
to deliver the savings requirements. 

In House 

Three 
 
Move the Services into an 
Alternative Delivery Model  

A group structure made up of different 
types of models as described in Table 
Three above.  This structure will enable 
flexibility in the future should there be an 
appetite for community engagement and 
or service user ownership which could be 
delivered through a more co-operative or 

Three different models of the 
group structure: 
 
A Local Authority trading 
company or ‘Teckal’ company 
operating to service the 
Council’s needs, an ‘internal’ 

Page 15

http://www.vivacity-peterborough.com/
http://newportlive.co.uk/
http://www.torfaenleisuretrust.co.uk/en/
http://www.torfaenleisuretrust.co.uk/en/


10 

 

joint venture. 
In establishing its group structure the 
Council will need to consider what type of 
legal entities best serves its aims e.g. 
Community Interest Companies, Company 
limited by shares, Company limited by 
guarantee, Community Benefit Society or 
Charitable Incorporated Organisation. 
 
These options will be given full 
consideration should Management Option 
Three be approved. 
 
 
 

facing company.  
 
As Teckal companies are only 
able to generate 20% of their 
income from other sources a 
trading company will conduct 
‘external’ facing, trading 
activities. 
 
A charitable company will 
enable certain services to 
benefit from other charitable 
sources/donations to 
presently accessible to the 
Council.  It may  enable 
business tax relief and would 
enable the other companies 
in the group to ‘gift aid’ 
profits to be reinvested in 
charitable purposes, thereby 
mitigating the impact of 
corporation tax charges. 

Four: 
 
Outsource the services to a third 
party 

 
The Council would no longer operate the 
Services directly but would commission a 
third party (or parties) to deliver the 
Services.  The Council’s role would be to 
contract manage the delivery and the 
Council would remain responsible to its 
citizens for the Service they receive which 
might cause issues in ensuring the Council 
and Welsh Government’s priorities for 
Service delivery are met although 
adequate contract provisions could 
prevent this. 
Any future Service changes need to be 
covered in the original procurement to 
ensure they are lawful  which cause 
inflexibility although could be covered by 
adequate contract provisions but may 
result in a higher budget for the Services, 
inhibiting the Council from making the 
savings. 

 
A Commercial Organisation 
would operate the Services 
commercially; the Council 
would have no control over 
the operation.   
Not all of the Services would 
be attractive to a commercial 
organisation e.g. some 
attractions would carry 
associated costs which may 
make them difficult to 
procure.   
Staff TUPE costs and risks 
along with pension liabilities 
may limit interest from 
bidders which could lead to 
the main bidders being 
charitable or non-profit 
organisations which may not 
have the commercial 
expertise or the balance sheet 
strength to take on the 
Services. 

 
5. The Vision for a new Delivery Option 

 
5.1 The Vision 
Any new Delivery Option for the Services is based on a shared responsibility between the Council and the 
Communities that it serves.  There will therefore be a need to ensure that it meets the Council’s four key 
priorities whilst also providing enhanced opportunities to: 
 

 Increase flexibility and agility in responding to needs and change; 

Page 16



11 

 

 Freedom to market and trade its services; 

 Improve Services through innovation and a culture of enterprise; 

 Introduce new processes that reduce duplication of effort and increase use of technology and self-
service, making it easier for residents to access services and obtain information and advice; 

 Empower and motivate staff thus raising productivity; 

 Access funding and tax efficiencies currently outside the scope of the Council; and  

 Offer higher levels of engagement through collaboration 
 

5.2 How would a new Delivery Option work? 
Any new Delivery Option will need to deliver a greatly improved service for Monmouthshire Service users.  It 
will need to improve what is currently done in terms of the customer service experience and even more 
importantly how its culture and working practices: 

 
5.3 Customer Experience 
Any new Delivery Option will need to deliver a greatly improved service for Monmouthshire’s communities, 
providing a service that is: 
 

 Responsive to Customer Needs – any issues should be resolved quickly; 

 Joined up with other agencies – if someone needs to be referred to the National Exercise Referral 
Scheme they should receive a joined up, seamless response; 

 Effective – visitors should leave Service areas feeling satisfied having had a worthwhile experience; 

 Focused on continual improvement – Service users should feel their views are being listened to if 
they feel the Service can be improved. 

 
5.4 Culture Change 
In order to deliver the best for Monmouthshire’s Communities culture change will be required at an 
individual, team and organisational level.  To support culture change Service staff will need to learn and 
practice new skills, receive feedback and have opportunities to continually develop their confidence and 
ability through peer support and supervision.  This will enable staff in any new Delivery Option to develop 
outcomes-based support plans and to manage Service Users expectations through clear and positive 
messaging.  Working outside previously ‘siloed’ Service areas will assist this. 
 
5.5 Staff Teams 
Strong staff teams will need to be nurtured to support and motivate each other to persevere as the new 
culture develops.  Maintaining motivation within teams as they learn to work differently and in more 
challenging ways will also require strong leadership.   
 
5.6 Working with partner organisations 
The culture of how any new Delivery organisation interacts with the community and voluntary organisations 
will also need to change.  Councils can often be seen as the key decision maker as they control funds and 
therefore make decisions unilaterally which often does not foster a culture of collaboration.  Any new 
Delivery organisation will need to act differently in order to motive the voluntary sector to work with it and 
will need to build partnership based on trust and transparency. 
 
The Council will also need to be prepared to take a low profile in terms of the branding and ‘ownership’ of 
any new delivery option.  To realise the benefits it must be designed, implemented and owned by all 
partners. 
 
5.7 Service Users 
The success of any new Delivery Option will also depend upon the willingness of service users to re-think 
their expectations and interact with the Services in a different way.  With this in mind a ‘What Matters’ 

Page 17



12 

 

consultation will be carried out with Service Users as well as an assessment of previous consultations to 
establish trends, changes in service delivery and how services have responded to community need to date in 
order to establish a baseline for future service interaction (further details can be found in Appendix Two:  
Engagement Process). 
 

6. Assessment of the Delivery Options and their Potential Impact  
In assessing the benefits that a new Delivery Option could deliver to the Council a full list of assessment 

criteria has been developed which can be found below, however there are two features of any new Delivery 

Option that make the speed and scale of the benefits less certain: 

 The success of any new Delivery Option will depend heavily upon the culture change and the extent 

to which staff, residents, service users and partners are prepared to embrace it; and 

 Any new Delivery Option will influence demand for Council funded services but it cannot control it.  

Uncertainty will always surround how much demand there will be the TLC Services in the future. 

These caveats withstanding, the pros and cons of each of the four delivery options recommended by 

Anthony Collins have been detailed below: 

 Delivery Option One:   Do Nothing; 

 Delivery Option Two: Transform the Services ‘in house’; 

• Delivery Option Three: Move the Services into an Alternative Delivery Model; and 
• Delivery Option Four: Outsource the services to a third party 
 

These options have been measured against criteria as determined in Table Four that follows which have 

been grouped in order to assess the strategic, economic, commercial, financial and management case for 

change, further analysis of which will follow.  

Table Four:  Assessment Criteria 
Assessment Criteria  Description  

STRATEGIC CASE 

Council Priorities  Ability of the Delivery Option to achieve the Council’s priorities set out in the Single 
Integrated Plan. 

Engagement  If there are any requirements to undertake consultation before implementation, e.g. 
staff, stakeholders, the public. 

ECONOMIC CASE 

Sustainability  How the Delivery Option allows the Services to be sustainable and for delivery to 
continue over the period of 2016/17 to 2021/22. 

COMMERCIAL CASE  

Service Improvement How the Delivery Option could allow for improvement of and innovation in the Services. 

Experience  The skills and experience of the Council in relation to the Delivery Option. 

STAFF SATISFACTION  

Staff The effect on staff engaged in the provision of the services (including the application of 
TUPE). 

FINANCIAL CASE  

Savings  The contribution that the Delivery Option can make to the Council meeting to fund the 
key services. 

MANAGEMENT CASE 

Cost/Resources  The costs to the Council associated with implementing the Delivery Option and the 
additional resources that will likely be required, and/or any costs benefits in 
implementing the option (e.g. the ability to generate income. 

Time The timescales for implementation of the Delivery Option.  The Council ideally needs the 
Delivery Option implemented by 1st September 2017. 

 

Page 18



13 

 

6.1 Ability of the Delivery Options to meet Monmouthshire County Council and National Strategic 
Objectives  

The ability of each of the four Delivery Options to meet the Council and National Strategic Priorities has been 
assessed along with any requirements to undertake consultation before implementation, e.g. staff, 
stakeholders, the public. 
 
Clearly the option to ‘Do Nothing’ would require no immediate change in council priorities or engagement 
activities however ‘Transformation in house’ may result in statutory services being prioritised over the TLC 
Services which could be a risk to any transformation process and therefore would require full service reviews 
and consultation to assess the impact on the people of Monmouthshire.   
 
Analysis of the other two delivery options is more complex and therefore detailed in the tables  below: 
 
Table Five:  Assessment of Delivery Options:  Ability to meet Strategic Objectives and Engagement 
Requirements  

Ability to Meet 
Council Priorities 

Transfer to ADM Outsource to Third Party 

Pros   Opportunity to adjust services via the LA 
owned TECKAL company  

 Would still have adherence to various 
key drivers and Acts. 

 Need to ensure expectations are clearly set 
out and the company is accountable. 

Cons   For the ADM to succeed must be and an 
acceptance that more commercial 
activity can sometimes cause conflict, 
focus of the ADM would be on 
sustainability and growth. 

 Council one step removed from delivery 
may cause issues in ensuring the Council’s 
vision for the Services is delivery.   

 Can be mitigated by ensuring that 
adequate contract management 
provisions are included in the contract(s).  

 Could be reputation damage to the 
Council or a feeling from Service Users of 
selling out of responsibilities. 

Engagement Requirements 

Pros   Council needs to consider if it has 
sufficient information to assess the 
impact of the change on the people of 
Monmouthshire.  If not, then there may 
be a need to consult. 

 

 Transferring service delivery to third 
party means third party needs to access 
assets (e.g. buildings) associated with 
the Services.  Council to undertake a 
State aid analysis on any provision of 
assets – this is most likely to be relevant 
to the trading company and the 
charitable entity because the Teckal 
entity will be treated like an in-house 
department.   

 

 In the event of asset transfers 
appropriate protections/restrictions on 
use would need to be included to 
protect continued public use.   

 

 State aid considerations apply to any 

 Council would no longer operate the 
Services directly but would commission a 
third party (or parties) to deliver the 
Services.  Council’s role would be to 
contract manage delivery and would 
remain responsible to the people of 
Monmouthshire for the service they 
receive. 

 

 Given the nature of the Services, there may 
be a need to consult on the nature of the 
specification/procurement model to 
ensure that the needs of service users are 
taken into account. 

 

 Additional market engagement to ensure 
Council goes out to the market with an 
attractive proposal. 

 

 Transferring service delivery to a third 
party means third party needs to access 
assets (e.g. buildings) associated with the 
Services.  Council would need to build into 

Page 19



14 

 

support (services or financial) that the 
Council would make available the 
entities providing services to the 
“market”.   

 In the context of property the Council 
needs to ensure that any disposal 
achieves best consideration. 

the procurement process, what it is making 
available and on what terms.  Asset 
transfers are unlikely in a procurement 
context but consideration should be given 
to leases/licences.  Council must undertake 
a State aid analysis on any provision of 
assets – making clear the assets available in 
the procurement process should mitigate 
this.  In the context of property the Council 
needs to ensure that any disposal (which 
could include a lease) achieves best 
consideration. 

   Not all Services would be attractive to 
commercial operators.  Some (e.g. Leisure) 
would be easy to outsource as there is a 
long history and a relatively mature market 
but some less attractive dues to associated 
costs and risks which might make them 
very difficult to procure e.g. Caldicot 
Castle. 

 

 TUPE costs and risks along with potential 
pension liabilities may limit interest from 
bidders, could lead to the main bidders 
being charitable or non-profit organisations 
which may not have the commercial 
expertise or the strength of balance sheet 
to take on the services.  

 

 The ADM could develop innovative and 
creative new partnerships with commercial 
operators, whereas it is more difficult to 
specify the development of such 
arrangements through procurement.  

 

 

6.2 Economic Case for change  
In assessing the economic case for change in terms of the best and future needs of the service and optimal 
value for money sustainability is the key issue.   
 
Clearly the ‘Do Nothing’ option is not sustainable as in the absence of savings or alternative funding sources 
the Council will not be able to sustain the Services.  There will be no scope of improvement which will result 
either in significant service reduction and/or the end of Service provision.   
 
If Services are to be transformed ‘In house’ then a full Service review may result in some savings/income 
generation which may in turn, make the Services more sustainable.  However, to make the Services 
sustainable a Council backed Investment strategy underpinned by financial commitment would be required 
in order to improve the building stock, equipment and maintenance budgets.   It is therefore accepted that a 
level of improvement to the delivery of the Services may be achieved through the full service review 
however this is unlikely to be at a level to achieve the overall savings target.  Therefore service reductions 
remain highly likely with consequent staff reductions.   
 
There is therefore a need to consider the pros and cons of transferring the Services into an ADM or 
outsourcing to a third party as detailed in Table Six that follows: 

Page 20



15 

 

 
Table Six:  Assessment of Delivery Options – Economic Case for Change 
Assessment of 
Sustainability  

Transfer to ADM Outsource to Third Party  

Pros  Establishing the Group presents the 
Council with the greatest opportunity to: 

(a) refine the delivery of Services 
Council through the Teckal company ensuring 
it is done  effectively and efficiently to 
contribute to the savings target; 
(b) ensure the continued delivery of 
certain aspects of the Services by taking a 
more commercial approach through the 
trading company and access funding pools 
not available to the Council, to a charity or to 
the Teckal company;; 
(c) preserve the non-commercial 
delivery of certain of the Services through the 
charitable entity which will have the ability to 
bid for different sources of funding and 
potentially benefit from Gift Aid (the Council 
is not currently able to do this). 
 

 Splitting the Services across these 
different delivery vehicles should help 
sustain the Services overall and allow (to 
the extent permitted) some level of cross 
subsidy. 

 

 Income generation through the trading 
arm, and the additional sources of 
funding that ADMs provide should 
ensure that the Services continue. 

 

 Early work on income generation 
suggests that there is scope to bring in 
significant new funding to the Services.  
To do this will require a substantial level 
of investment – again the ADM would 
have access to sources of social capital 
that are not available to the Council. 

 

 ADM would not necessarily be required 
to distribute profits to shareholders. It 
should consequently have a trading 
advantage over commercial competitors. 

 Private sector efficiencies (e.g. economies of 
scale) might reduce operating costs and 
contribute to savings. 

 

 Companies would commit to operating cost 
and levels of operational delivery levels at 
the commencement of the contract so there 
would be a level of confidence built into the 
agreement. 

Cons   Risk that income generation will not be 
as forecasted and that the Group will 
become loss making.  If this happens 
then the Council would need to look at 
other options to compensate. 

 Private sector will price in risk and profit 
elements may result in a higher budget for 
the Services.  This would not allow the 
Council to achieve savings. Could be 
mitigated by including requirements for 
income generation/sharing within the 
contract(s).  Failure to generate sufficient 
income then the risk could potentially be 
shared with the contractor(s). 

 

Page 21



16 

 

6.3 Commercial Opportunities  
Given the ‘Scale of the Challenge’ from a budgetary perspective i.e. a projected reduction in Services of 20% 
by 2020/21 the need to identify new Delivery Options to enable commercial opportunities is a key driver in 
the case for change. Alongside this is the need for service improvement whilst also considering service 
delivery experience to enable the best chance of success.   
 
The ‘Do Nothing’ Option 
In assessing the ‘Do Nothing’ option Services staff are professional, industry qualified and knowledgeable and 
have continued to deliver service improvements, having already contributed over £1.65m of revenue savings 
and generated over £17m of income to date.  However there are no more efficiencies to make and the ability 
to deliver further improvements over the future years is limited.  In the absence of savings or alternative 
sources of funding the Council will not be able to continue to fund the Services ad infinitum resulting in 
service reduction or withdrawal and consequently no scope for service improvement nor to deliver in a more 
commercial manner.   
 
Transforming Services in House 
There is the potential for some level of service improvement arising from the full service review and 

investment will be required from the Council to underpin the development of new delivery methods.  

Transforming services inside the Council does give rise to opportunities to improve understanding of cost, 

data and Performance Indicators and to build on driving a business culture.  However working within the 

existing confines of the Services and Council operations could mean that the level of service improvement is 

inhibited when compared with the ADM model particularly as the Council is limited in the sources of funds 

that it can access and in the amount and types of trading that it can carry out.  This therefore reduces the 

range of potential ways in which services might be developed and delivered in future.  In order to survive and 

thrive, the Services need to be commercial in its approach, fleet of foot, able to adapt quickly to trend and 

customer demand. They also need access to a continued level of investment and maintenance when 

required and an ability to be proactive and make business decisions quickly to increase income opportunities, 

at present decision making can be a lengthy process (although normally positive and supportive).   

In comparison the pros and cons of transferring the Services into an ADM or outsourcing to a third party are 

detailed in Table Seven below: 

Table Seven:  Assessment of Delivery Options – Commercial Opportunities 
Assessment of 
Commercial 
Opportunities  

Transfer to ADM Outsource to Third Party  

Service Improvement  

Pros  Moving to the Group structure outside of the 
Council’s normal processes should enable 
greater flexibility, innovation and agility in 
responding to the changes of the future. 
 
The group structure would allow the staff to 
develop a more radical approach to the 
management and operation of Services, 
breaking down silos and developing cross 
cutting expertise in more commercial service 
provision and marketing. It would become a 
lean, efficient and highly motivated 
organisation.   
 
The new entity would be free to market 
services to two target audiences: 

Service improvement targets could be built into 
the contract(s).  Use of the private sector might 
delivery innovation in the delivery of the 
Services. 
 
To be assured of innovation and commitment on 
investment a long contract would be required. 

Page 22



17 

 

1. the 2 million plus annual visitors to 
the county 
2. other local authorities, public and 
private bodies 
These audiences offer the potential of new 
income into the county from outside, which 
can be used to sustain services for the 
residents of Monmouthshire. 

Service Delivery 
Experience  
Pros  

Once a decision is taken to establish the 
Group, then set up of the entities can be 
achieved more quickly than a procurement 
process.   
 
The external professional advisers for this 
project are already in place and so there is no 
need to procure additional support. 
 
The Council will need to consider if for 
example it enters into a time limited 
management contract with a third party 
which has commercial expertise.  This may 
involve a procurement exercise and staffing 
issues. 

The Council has experience of procurement 
processes.  Additional external support can be 
obtained where needed. 

Service Improvement  

Cons  The Council would be removed from the day 
to day operation of the services to varying 
degrees.  It would have influence on the two 
companies (and in particular the Teckal 
company) but there would be much lighter 
touch involvement in the operation of the 
charity.  This would be a culture change for 
the Council but will enable the benefits set 
out in this analysis to be achieved. 
 
Although the Council would not be involved 
in day to day operation, in the minds of the 
people of Monmouthshire it would still be 
responsible for the Services.  The reputational 
risks need to be appropriately protected 
against.  The Council’s involvement in the 
establishment and governance arrangements 
should contribution to these protections. 

The Council is one step removed from delivery 
which might cause issues in ensuring the 
Council’s vision for the Services is delivery.  This 
can be mitigated by ensuring that adequate 
contract management provisions are included in 
the contract(s). 
 
Any future changes to the Services need to be 
covered in the original procurement to ensure 
that they are lawful.  Given the uncertainty that 
currently exists in the public sector this could 
cause inflexibility.  This can be mitigated with a 
suitable procurement process and detailed 
contract change provisions.  
 
If a long contract is offered there is a risk that 
the quality and expectations of Council and 
Communities are not being represented.  There 
would be a cost to client management and 
potential reputation damage 

Service Delivery 
Experience 
Cons  

Whilst the establishment of the entities can 
be achieved comparatively quickly, creation 
of plans and alignment of governance 
requirements may take longer. 
 
This is a new area for the Council and so 
external advice is required – legal, tax, 
business management etc. 
 
This option will require a large amount of 
officer time to ensure that the plans for “go 
live” are in place and that as smooth a 

The Council is not experienced in full service 
procurement processes.  Additional external 
support will need to be obtained where needed. 

Page 23



18 

 

transition as possible can be achieved.  
Elements of the work for options 2) and 4) – 
specifications, service review are needed. 
 
Establishment costs need to be factored into 
the savings across the five year period.  This 
means the entities need to generate income 
in excess of that set out above – £2million to 
£2.5million. 
 
If the new entity secures capital investment, 
the costs of this money also need to be taken 
into account. 
 

 

6.4 Staff Satisfaction 
Staff are key to the success of any organisation and the Council will not make a decision that will put staff in 
jeopardy.  It is therefore essential that the four Delivery Options are considered carefully when it comes to 
staff satisfaction. 
 
The ‘Do Nothing’ Option 
 
Initially the ‘Do Nothing’ option would appear to be the more stable and familiar environment for staff 
because there is no immediate change to their circumstances.   However, as time goes on the questionable 
sustainability of the services due to the austerity measures may lead to staffing issues as staff could be at risk 
of redundancy and the Council will bear the associated costs.  This lack of long term stability will therefore 
impact upon staff morale and emotional wellbeing as staff in services where there is little scope to do things 
differently will become frustrated with their lack of urgency to do anything except manage decline. 

 
 Transforming Services in House 

 
Again, this option may initially provide a familiar and stable environment for staff however a full service 
review may also result in some level of unease amongst staff pending the publication of the results. In 
addition, a shortfall in meeting the savings requirements may result in service reductions and consequently 
staff reductions, this lack of long term stability will inevitably impact upon staff morale and emotional 
wellbeing as staff may be frustrated by a process which limits their capacity to innovate and develop new 
ways of working. 
 
In comparison, the pros and cons of transferring the Services into an ADM or outsourcing to a third party are 

detailed in Table Eight below: 

Table Eight:  Assessment of Delivery Options – Staff Satisfaction 
Assessment of 
Staff Satisfaction 

Transfer to ADM Outsource to Third Party  

Pros  Staff would be freed (to an extent) from 
local authority process and timescales 
resulting in more innovative working.   
Local authority pay restrictions would not 
apply and this could result in staff incentive 
pay to drive performance which would need 
to be factored in to the income generation 
to ensure there is no risk to meeting the 
savings. 

Moving to the private sector could provide new 
opportunities for staff and exposure to new 
ways of working.  Staff would be freed from 
public sector pay restraints however wage 
growth would need to be factored into the 
financial assessment and measured against the 
savings requirements. 

Page 24



19 

 

Cons  Staff would likely transfer to the new 
entities under TUPE which may cause staff 
unease and uncertainty.  However this can 
be mitigated by information provision and 
involvement in the process design.  There is 
a need to engage with relevant staff unions 
and time will need to be allowed for any 
transfer under TUPE and the necessary 
consultation.   

Staff would most likely transfer under TUPE to 
the new provider(s).  [A separate note has been 
prepared by Anthony Collins on TUPE 
procedures and timescales.] 
 
This transfer might result in unease (moving 
from the public sector into the private sector) 
and a lack of stability.  Comprehensive 
engagement and information provision should 
help allay concerns.  The relevant staff unions 
should be engaged with. 

 
6.5 Financial Savings 

Given the scale of the revenue savings already made and the fact that there are no more efficiencies to be 
made  the ability of the proposed new Delivery Options to deliver financial savings is key, particularly given 
the 12% funding gap and 20% reduction in services already predicted in order to meet current budget 
targets. 
 
The ‘Do Nothing’ Option 
Under current operating conditions some aspects of the Services are assisted by wider budgets held across 
larger Council portfolios.  However, operating under the existing model and with no changes in the Services, 
will not enable the Council to meet its savings targets therefore, unless other funding sources become 
available the Council will experience a funding shortfall and Services will become unsustainable.  At present 
year after year, budgets are being cut and there is limited investment in non- statutory services. Areas such 
as tourism, leisure, museums are struggling to keep open and will need to close in some instances to make 
savings required therefore the ‘Do nothing’ option is not an option if savings are to be made. 
 
Transforming Services in House 
A Services review may result in savings/income generation and the Council also has a good track in attracting 
grants.  This could lead to more efficient systems with Services running in a more business-like fashion 
leading to financial savings.  A Services team restructure will also bring services together rather than working 
independently.  However, the savings generated through a service review are unlikely to meet the savings 
target in full given the reductions in budgets that have already been experienced; there will therefore be a 
need for further service reductions to meet any shortfall.  While there is scope for income generation, the 
Council will not be able to take full advantage of this given its limited ability to generate a profit.  In addition, 
Monmouthshire’s relatively small population of circa 92,000 means that the Council would have to generate  
approximately £6 per head per year in charges, to cover the income lost from service budgets – i.e. to get the 
same level of services they receive now. This is likely to be politically unpalatable and practically unrealistic.   
 
In comparison, the pros and cons of transferring the Services into an ADM or outsourcing to a third party are 

detailed in Table Nine below: 

Table Nine:  Assessment of Delivery Options – Financial Savings 
Assessment of 
Financial Savings  

Transfer to ADM Outsource to Third Party  

Pros  Establishing the Group ADM presents the 
Council with the greatest opportunity to: 
(a) refine the delivery of Services back 
to the Council through the Teckal company 
to contribute to the savings target; 
(b) ensure the continued delivery of 
certain aspects of the Services by taking a 
more commercial approach through the 
trading company and access funding pools 

Private sector economies of scale might reduce 
operating costs & contribute to savings. 
 
If private sector tendered for business savings 
and investment for infrastructure and risk 
would fall to the contractor. 
  
If the outsourcing is a success other services 
could be commissioned to provide savings in 

Page 25



20 

 

not available to the Council, to a charity or 
to the Teckal company;; 
(c) preserve the non-commercial 
delivery of certain of the Services through 
the charitable entity which will have the 
ability to bid for different sources of funding 
and potentially benefit from Gift Aid (the 
Council is not currently able to do this). 
 
Splitting the Services across these different 
delivery vehicles should help sustain the 
Services overall and allow (to the extent 
permitted) some level of cross subsidy. 
 
Income generation through the trading arm, 
and the additional sources of funding that 
ADMs provide should ensure that the 
Services continue. 
 
Early work on income generation suggests 
that there is scope to bring in significant 
new funding to the Services.  To do this will 
require a substantial level of investment – 
again the ADM would have access to sources 
of social capital that are not available to the 
Council. 
 
The new ADM would not necessarily be 
required to distribute profits to 
shareholders. It should consequently have a 
trading advantage over commercial 
competitors. 
 
The new ADM if established could be a 
platform/landing base or opportunity for 
further services in the future if providing the 
correct culture, opportunities and 
efficiencies 
 

the future. 

Cons  There is a risk that income generation will 
not be as forecasted & that the Group will 
become loss making.  If this happens then 
the Council would need to look at other 
options to compensate. 
 
Charging for services (or charging more for 
services than is currently the case) is unlikely 
to be popular with Monmouthshire 
residents. 
 
Depending on the relationship and contract 
with the Council the savings should be 
locked in meaning that additional whole 
authority cuts would not be available to 
services inside the ADM. 

The private sector will price in risk and profit 
elements, this may result in a higher budget for 
the Services.  This would not allow the Council 
to achieve savings.  This could be mitigated by 
including requirements for income 
generation/sharing within the contract(s).  If 
there was a failure to generate sufficient 
income then the risk could potentially be 
shared with the contractor(s). 

Page 26



21 

 

6.6 Management Case  
Finally, in evaluating the management case of each of the four Delivery Options with a view to determining 
which of them are most achievable and can be delivered in accordance with accepted best practice the 
criteria for time, cost/resource have been assessed. 
 
The ‘Do Nothing’ Option 
As the Services Business Plans and Performance Indicators are timed into the political and financial cycles 
which are expected in delivering services inside Local Authority there is no impact in terms of timing.  An 
element of staff consultation has been completed regarding the Delivery Options including a due diligence 
exercise and “what matters” consultations with customers and staff and stakeholders including unions. This 
process has been ongoing for nine months since the start of the proposal assessment process and will 
continue over the coming months.   
 
Transforming Services in House 
Resources will need to be allocated to undertake the full service review however these will be considerably 
less resources than those needed to implement the ADM model or to undertake a public procurement 
process.  The services have been under review for many years and various plans and recommendations are in 
need of implementation, in some cases these are connected to cost and funding bids.  If transformation 
inside the Council is the preferred option then the time required to investigate would be increased as other 
aspects of council plans and procedures impact on the end service delivery such as websites, systems and 
procedures outside the gift of the service management team. 
 
As detailed above an amount of consultation has already been completed for all Services however this will 
need to be extended in order to undertake a full Services review.  Some service transformation is likely to be 
completed by the teams and managers but to continue without additional resources whilst operating 
services would be a massive challenge. 
 

In comparison, the pros and cons of transferring the Services into an ADM or outsourcing to a third party are 

detailed in Table Ten below: 

Table Ten:  Assessment of Delivery Options – Management Case  
Assessment of 
Management Case  

Transfer to ADM Outsource to Third Party  

Pros  Once a decision is taken to establish the 
Group, then set up of the entities can be 
achieved more quickly than a procurement 
process.   
 
The external professional advisers for this 
Delivery Option are already in place so there 
is no need to procure additional support. 
 
The Council will need to consider if it needs 
to tender support for a partner with 
commercial expertise.  This may involve a 
procurement exercise and staffing issues. 
 
An amount of consultation has been 
completed for all services including due 
diligence, “what matters” to customers and 
staff and stakeholders. This process has 
been ongoing for 9 months since the start of 
the project and will continue over the 

Costs are likely to be less than with the move to 
an ADM, unless a complex procurement route 
is chosen.  The resources needed will vary 
depending on the procedure chosen.   
 
An amount of consultation has already been 
completed over the last nine months and will 
continue over the coming months. 
 
 
 

Page 27



22 

 

coming months. 
 
The initial work undertaken and team’s 
research into establishing a new way of 
delivering services has already been agreed 
by the Council. The services are already 
starting to collaborate to ensure all tasks 
and engagement costs are minimised. 
 

Cons  Whilst the establishment of the entities can 
be achieved comparatively quickly, creation 
of plans and alignment of governance 
requirements may take longer. 
 
This is a new area for the Council and so 
external advice is required – legal, tax, 
business management etc. 
 
This option will require a large amount of 
officer time to ensure that the plans for “go 
live” are in place and that as smooth a 
transition as possible can be achieved.   
 
Establishment costs need to be factored into 
the savings across the five year period.  This 
means the ADM needs to generate income 
in excess of that set out above – £2million to 
£2.5million. 
 
If the ADM secures capital investment, the 
costs of this money also need to be taken 
into account. 
 
 

Undertaking a procurement process could take 
upwards of nine months from start to award 
(with implementation time in addition).  There 
is a requirement for a significant amount of 
work prior to publication of an advert.  As 
noted, there may be requirements for market 
and service user engagement prior to 
advertisement.  This timescale assumes a 
simple procurement process (absent any 
dialogue with tenderers).  Using one of the 
more complex procurement procedures may 
result in more innovative and tailored solutions 
but will take longer and cost more (in terms of 
internal and external support). 
 
Procurement can be an expensive process – 
albeit with much of the costs hidden.  The 
procurement costs of a single open tender 
were estimated at c£45,000 (of which £8,000 
was borne by the public sector employer) in 
2011/12, in research conducted by the Centre 
for Economics and Business Research.   
 
If contractors fail the Council is left with a costly 
process of taking services back in house. 

 
7. Overall assessment of Delivery Options 

Clearly each of the four delivery options carries with it some key differences, advantages and disadvantages.  
Table Eleven offers an overview of the key areas, key benefits and disadvantages of each of the four delivery 
options and an indication of the financial implications to ease an overall assessment. 

 
Table Eleven:  Overall Assessment of the Four Delivery Options 

Do Nothing  

Benefits  Disadvantages  Financial Implications 

 Council experienced at delivering services; 

 Services have continued to deliver 
improvements over the past years and 
have performed strongly but their ability to 
deliver further improvement is limited; 

 Stable option for staff ; 

 Full control of Service delivery. 
 

 Council will be unable to 
meet savings targets unless 
other funding sources 
become available; 

 Limited investment could 
result in service reduction or 
some Services needing to 
close to make savings 
required; 

 No scope for service 
improvement; 

 Lack of long term 

 Projected reduction in Services 
of 20% by 2020/21 

Page 28



23 

 

sustainability could impact 
on staff morale; 

 Lack of freedom to operate 
to full commercial 
advantage; 

 Other council priorities may 
take precedence leading to 
further service decline; 

 Although predominantly 
supportive decision making 
can be lengthy when services 
need to be fleet of foot and 
able to adapt quickly to trend 
and customer demand; 

 Limited opportunities to 
grow Service delivery. 

 

Transform In House 

Benefits  Disadvantages  Financial Implications  

 Opportunity to restructure teams and 
structures to bring Services together;  

 May result in savings/income generation.  
MCC also has a good track in attracting 
grants; 

 Could lead to more efficient systems and 
running council services like a business 
with a more commercial feel; 

 Opportunities to improve understanding 
of cost, data and PI’s and build on driving 
a culture of business. 

 Investment strategy &  commitment 
backed by MCC would be required to 
ensure services remain sustainable, 
building stock improved along with 
equipment and maintenance budgets; 

 Resources  needed to enable  review 
however these will be considerably less 
resources than those needed to 
implement the ADM model or to 
undertake a public procurement process; 

 Implementation of previous reviews 
required cost implications & funding bids 
required;  

 May result in some level of unease 
amongst staff pending the publication of 
the results. 

 Council priorities must be to 
deliver statutory services so 
if budgets are prioritised the 
ability to keep services 
funded and open to the level 
required for transformation 
is at  risk;  

 Savings generated  unlikely 
to meet the savings target in 
full given previous  service 
reductions leading to staff 
reductions; 

 Limited scope for  additional 
income generation due to 
profit restrictions on a LA; 

 Limited funding sources 
reducing the potential for 
service redevelopment and 
delivery;  

 Impact of review on others 
aspects of the Council i.e. 
websites, systems and 
procedures ;  

 Lack of long term stability 
impacting upon staff morale 
and emotional wellbeing; 

 Staff may be frustrated by a 
process which limits their 
capacity to innovate and 
develop new ways of 
working. 

 Savings unlikely to meet the 
target in full given the 
reductions in budgets that 
have already been 
experienced; 

 Further  service reductions 
required to  meet any 
shortfall therefore projected 
reduction in Services of 20% 
by 2020/21;  

o  
 While there is scope for 

income generation, the 
Council will not be able to 
take full advantage of this 
given its limited ability to 
generate a profit.   

Page 29



24 

 

Move Services to an Alternative Delivery Model  

Benefits  Disadvantages  Financial Implications 

 Council could adjust services via the LA 
owned TECKAL company ;  

 Will enable greater flexibility, innovation 
and agility ; 

 Opportunity to refine Services to enable 
savings;  

 More commercial approach, opportunity 
to bring in significant additional funding 
outside scope of the Council; 

 Investment required in Services but ADM 
could access sources of social capital not 
available to the Council; 

 Enable staff to develop commercial 
service provision and marketing  
becoming a lean, efficient and highly 
motivated organisation; 

 Not necessarily required to distribute 
profits to shareholders so trading 
advantage over commercial competitors;  

 Could be a landing base  for further 
services in the future; 

 Ability to market services to other sectors 
generating new income to sustain 
services for Monmouthshire residents; 

 Local authority pay restrictions would not 
apply and this could result in staff 
incentive pay to drive performance – this 
would need to be factored in to the 
income generation to ensure there is no 
risk to meeting the savings. 

 Council priorities would be 
adhered to but commercial 
activity could cause conflict as 
focus of the ADM would be on 
sustainability and growth; 

 Risk that income generation 
will not be as forecasted & 
that the Group will become 
loss making; 

 Council removed from the day 
to day operation of  Services 
although  would have 
influence particularly in the  
Teckal company; 

 Establishment costs need to be 
factored into the savings 
across the five year period.  
This means the entities need  

 Staff would likely transfer 
under TUPE, unions to be 
engaged to reduce any unease 
and uncertainty.   

 £231k per annum savings from 
business rate relief; 

 Potential for additional 
efficiencies and income 
generation; 

 Potential for donations, 
legacies, gift aid, etc. 

 

Outsource Services to Third Party   

Benefits  Disadvantages  Financial Implications 

 May reduce operating costs & contribute 
to savings; 

 Short term risk would fall to the 
contractor ; 

 May deliver innovation in the delivery of 
the Services.  

 An amount of consultation  

 Transferring service delivery  

 Moving to the private sector could 
provide new opportunities for staff and 
exposure to new ways of working.  Staff 
would be freed from public sector pay 
restraints.  Wage growth would need to 
be factored into the financial assessment 
and measured against the savings 
requirements; 

 

 Council would no longer 
operate the Services yet would 
remain responsible to 
residents for the service they 
receive; 

 Could be reputation damage to 
the Council or a feeling of 
selling out responsibilities; 

 Not all Services will be 
attractive to a private sector 
contractor s so may still 
remain in house; 

 Private sector will price in risk 
and profit elements, this may 
result in a higher budget for 
the Services also profits will be 
distributed outside the County;  

 Any future changes to the 
Services need to be covered in 
the original procurement , 

 May achieve£231k per annum 
savings from business rate 
relief depending on nature of 
business; 

 Potential for additional 
efficiencies and income 
generation; 
 

Page 30



25 

 

given the uncertainty that 
currently exists this could 
cause inflexibility; 

 Undertaking a procurement 
process could take upwards of 
nine months from start to 
award (with implementation 
time in addition); 

 Procurement can be an 
expensive process;  

 If contractors fail the Council is 
left with a costly process of 
taking services back in house; 

 Council has limited experience 
of full service procurement 
processes.  Additional external 
support will need to be 
obtained ; 

 The TUPE costs and risks along 
with potential pension 
liabilities may limit interest 
from bidders;  

 ADM could develop innovative 
and creative new partnerships 
with commercial operators, 
whereas it is more difficult to 
specify the development of 
such arrangements through 
procurement; 

 

 

8. Recommendations and Next Steps 
 

8.1 Recommendations 
The next stage is to give full consideration to the contents of this proposal and to consider the principle 
recommendation from Anthony Collins Solicitors which is to agree Delivery Option Three ,  to establish a new 
Alternative Model for the TLC Youth Services based on the financial savings and income generation potential 
that this offers as well as opportunity to direct Service delivery. 
 
This is based on the following observations: 
 

 Delivery Options one and two to ‘Do Nothing’ or ‘Transform in House’ are not viable as it will not 
allow the Council to meet its saving requirements.  The Council would therefore need to either to 
reallocate funds from other Services (putting extra pressure in other areas) or it would need to 
reduce Service delivery to allow the savings to be met; 

 Delivery Option four to ‘Outsource to a third party’ has some attractive qualities  however the 
market is likely to present a solution that will take time to implement, may only cherry pick certain 
Services and given future funding uncertainties, could be significantly inflexible.   

 
Delivery Option Three to ‘Establish a New Alternative Delivery Model’ presents a radically new way of 
working for the Council but one which has been tried and tested in other Local Authority Areas.  Whilst there 
are risks, the ADM does present the best opportunity to sustain and improve services during this period of 
financial uncertainty.  A successful move of the TLC Services to an ADM could also herald a way forward for 
other Council services with the advantage that structures and experience are already in place. 

Page 31



26 

 

Note however that Delivery Options three and four are not mutually exclusive for example there are the 
possibilities of: 
 

 the ADM procuring from third parties to benefit from the commercial sector expertise where is it 
would be helpful; and 

 The outsourcing approach being used in such a way as to procure a partner to develop an ADM 
approach. 

 
8.2 Next Steps 

Should the recommendation to establish an ADM be approved then the next steps would be as follows: 
 

 To agree to the internal recruitment of an interim core structure to take the process forward and 
establish the ADM; 

 To agree funding for the next stage of the process which will be identified in the final business plan  

 To agree the group structure of the ADM from the list as detailed in Appendix Three; 

 To agree the final scope of the ADM and which services will be transferred an inception and which 
ones will be considered for the next phase; 

 To produce a draft business plan for the ADM for approval prior to establishment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



27 

 

Appendix One:  Council Priorities and Current Service Delivery  
 

Council Priority  Current Service delivery  

Education   Providing learning experiences to enable young people to fulfil their 
potential as empowered individuals & members of communities 
through the provision of an adequate Youth and Outdoor Education 
Service. 

Protecting Vulnerable People   Supporting an active and healthy Monmouthshire and a healthy 
lifestyle through the participation in physical activity and the provision 
of a GP Exercise Referral Scheme. 

 Offering a bespoke packages to those most vulnerable NEET 16-24 year 
olds in order to sustain education, employment or training and reduce 
the potential for youth unemployment. 

 Offering a youth counselling service to support the County’s most 
vulnerable young people during difficult times. 

 Offering training via volunteer programmes to promote community 
participation and cohesion. 

Supporting Enterprise, 
Entrepreneurship and job creation 

 Raising the profile of Monmouthshire regionally, nationally and 
internationally with a view to increasing visitor spend and extending 
the visitor season. 

 Increasing visitor numbers to leisure centres and visitor attractions by 
adding value to existing products and developing new products to 
attract new markets. 

  Create links with local businesses to provide opportunities to buy and   
sell services. 

Maintaining locally accessible services  Providing a full range of leisure services in Monmouthshire towns. 

 Investing in buildings to create quality spaces that will attract greater 
visitor numbers and improve financial viability. 

 

Page 33



28 

 

Appendix Two:  Engagement Process 
Engagement process  

Engagement has been integral from the initial stages to the final product achieved. Staff are our greatest 

asset and it is important that they have the opportunity to be involved in the journey.  As with any change 

there will be fears, challenge and opportunities discovered, and when they do it is important that they are 

dealt with along the way.  

Engagement processes to date Purpose 

Bringing together of leisure, outdoor education and 
youth service  

To ascertain synergies; duplication and conducting a ‘What 
Matters’ exercise with staff on the processes of the ADM; 
what they needed from the process and concerns they had 

Bringing together of Cultural services as a result of 
the Amion report  

To respond to findings of report and improve services for the 
future 

The creation of ‘Change Ambassadors’, a group of 
staff who have volunteered to assist in the process, 
with an equal membership from all service areas  

Ambassadors will ensure staff and volunteers are fully 
involved in the change process and have access to 
appropriate communication channels 

Regular meetings with nominated Members To inform Members of progress made at each stage; to 
ensure messages and direction are clear and meet 
expectations   

Regular meetings with Union representatives To inform union representatives of progress being made at 
stages and opportunity for them to raise queries  

Engaging with our service users to establish ‘What 
Matters’ to them on the services they use 

Paper and on-line surveys were distributed to services users 
to ‘dip-test’ what was important to them. Circa 1200 surveys 
completed and responses being analysed  

 

Communication is key and must be clear, honest and concise for those receiving.  Through a growing 

network, regular email updates have been sent out to service staff, SLT, Members and Unions to ensure key 

messages are relayed as quickly to as many people as possible.  Face to face meetings have been arranged 

when appropriate to engage staff, SLT and Members and have the opportunity to discuss key stages reached.  

Employee Engagement 

Employees come first – we will take care of our employees and they in turn, will take care of the customer. If 

they believe in the organisation and what we are trying to do, they will feel more confident about the long-

term prospects. Ultimately making them engaged and offering the optimum customer experience. It’s a 

virtuous circle. 

Employee engagement will take varying formats to ensure all are able to have an input at each stage.  

To assist in the communication to staff, we have engaged the Change Ambassadors. The Change 

Ambassadors group have worked with the project team to:- 

 Act as champions in promoting the progress of the ADM project within their service areas by 
ensuring that progress is regularly reported back to colleagues 

 Ensure the engagement with staff and volunteers is two-way, direct, transparent, open and easily 

understood. 

 Ensure staff and volunteers feel included, listened to, valued and involved in the change process 

 Ensure feedback from staff and volunteers is shared with the ADM team as necessary 

 Assist in the facilitation of staff engagement events 

 Create communication channels that are appropriate and meet the needs of staff and volunteers  

Page 34



29 

 

The role of the Change Ambassadors will be critical in assisting us during this process and supporting service 

user events in the future.  

Using previous intelligence and data from services 

We know that all services have all engaged in the past with their customers however we are aware that we 

hold data in many places and formats. Once we have identified the sources of its intellectual property and 

anecdotal feedback, we will analyse the findings, and with employees discuss what information could be 

useful to inform future processes. 

 

Page 35



30 

 

Appendix Three:  Potential Delivery Options for the Services 
 

Delivery Option  Description Type of Legal Vehicles 

In-House Provision Services will continue to operate 
in-house in accordance with the 
existing service delivery and 
staff. 
 

In-House Direct Provision  

An Alternative Delivery Model  formed from one or range of Delivery Options Below: 
 

Organisation owned by the 
Council – Teckal  

Teckal company operates the 
service to meet the council 
needs. A commercial company, 
operating with more freedom, 
80% of its income comes from 
the Council. 

In-House Direct Provision but 
with own Board of Directors 

Community Interest Company  A company set up with a social 
purpose, using any profits and 
assets for public good. 

If CIC limited by shares, can 
declare dividend out of profits 
if: 
• approved by 
shareholders via resolution; 
and 
• lower than the 
aggregate dividend cap (35% of 
distributable profits). 
 
If CIC limited by guarantee, no 
dividends. 

Company Limited by Shares A company with ‘share capital’ 
which shareholders are obliged 
to contribute a share of the 
profits based on their 
shareholding. 

Not for profit or profit making 
for shareholders via dividends 

Company limited by Guarantee  This company does not have to 
be charitable and the Council 
could be the sole shareholder 
but it would need to 
demonstrate its independence, 
can provide flexibility between 
operating a profit and 
protecting the assets of an 
organisation. 

No Shareholders so no 
dividends to pay however, 
profits cannot be distributed to 
members if registered as a 
charity. 

Community Benefit Society  Not registered with the Charity 
Commission but ‘exempt’ 
charities which operate for the 
benefit of communities 

CBSs - profits not distributed to 
members. 

Charitable Incorporated 
Organisation 

Charitable and registered by 
Charity Commission, liability of 
trustees and members is 
limited. CIOs get mandatory 
relief on business rates and 
other tax reliefs. 

Restricted – CIO income must: 
• be applied solely 
towards the promotion of its 
objects 
• not be paid or 
transferred directly or 
indirectly by way of dividend, 
bonus or otherwise by way of 
profit to any of its members. 

Delivery by an external organisation 

Page 36



31 

 

Outsource to a Commercial 
Organisation  

A Commercial Organisation to 
deliver the Services.  The 
Council’s role would be to 
contract manage the delivery 
and the Council would remain 
responsible to its citizens for the 
Service they receive 

Profit Making  

 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Interim Structure  

(to include an Administrative Apprentice) 

Market Development & Commercial 

Lead  

(Internal Secondment at Business Plan stage) 

Acting Managing Director/CEO 

Ian Saunders  

(Currently Head of Tourism, Leisure  & Culture)  

Finance Lead 

Marie Bartlett         

(Internal Secondment) 

Responsibilities: 

Undertake cost analysis of in 

scope services to include     

identification of indirect costs 

to assess true costs of ser-

vice; 

Undertake viability assess-

ment of commerciality of 

services;   

Analysis of available fund-

ing approaches & procure-

ment options; 

Negotiate lease    agree-

ments/purchases with MCC 

Asset Management  

Development of Investment 

strategy  

To monitor and be lead on 

Anthony Collins and advisors 

relationship 

 

 

Responsibilities: 

Lead the ADM through the commer-

cial  

  landscape; 

Drive down costs by identifying effi-

ciencies whilst improving customer 

experiences; 

Develop & deliver a comprehensive 

& costed marketing plan  

Identify opportunities to commercial-

ise existing services; 

Identify new market opportunities; 

Develop new products; 

Identify future trends & customer              

expectations 

Operations Transition Lead 

(Internal Secondment at Business Plan 

stage) 

Responsibilities: 

Manage & facilitate the transi-

tion from business plan to oper-

ations. 

Identify efficiencies in current 

services & new  opportunities 

for commercial development. 

Monitor, evaluate progress and 

timelines 

To review existing contracts and 

agreements currently in place. 

To review and implement new 

operating procedures in line 

with industry standards and 

H&S requirements 

 

Engagement Lead 

Tracey Thomas                

(Internal Secondment) 

Responsibilities: 

Develop & deliver a programme of staff 

engagement  activities with all ADM ser-

vices; 

Develop and deliver programme  of 
community engagement activities for all 
associated services; 

 

Ensure ADM complies with MCC political  

process to  include Member engagement, 

production of associated reports,  etc. in 

line with proposed ADM governance 

arrangements; 

Work with MCC HR team in staff TUPE 

arrangements, Union engagement, etc. 

Develop & deliver an ADM volunteer 

engagement programme and identify 

how the ADM can capitalise the ROI for  

volunteers 

MCC Head of Economy  

Cath Fallon  

(Strategic alignment,  

Governance & service preparedness) 

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
     
Name of the Officer Ian Saunders 
 
Phone no:07876545793 
E-mail: iansaunders@monmouthshire.gov.uk  

To consider a new Delivery Option for Tourism, Leisure, Culture and 

Youth Services 

Name of Service: Enterprise including Tourism, Leisure, Culture 

and Youth 

Date Future Generations Evaluation 25th August 2016 

 

NB. Key strategies and documents that may help you identify your contribution to the wellbeing goals and sustainable development 

principles include: Single Integrated Plan, Continuance Agreement, Improvement Plan, Local Development Plan, People Strategy, Asset 

Management Plan, Green Infrastructure SPG, Welsh Language Standards, etc 

 

1. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below?  

Well Being Goal  

Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 

Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to mitigate 

any negative impacts or better contribute to 

positive impacts? 

A prosperous Wales 
Efficient use of resources, skilled, 
educated people, generates wealth, 
provides jobs 

To ensure much valued local services are maintained 

and by their nature provide employment, growth and 

an increasingly skilled workforce. 

Keeping services open but with more community 

focus and coordination – helping knit communities 

together.  

Positive engagement and coordination with 

community focused services.  

Income generation and investment in key aspects of 

the business will ensure the culture and business 

thrives and there is sustained growth. 

A resilient Wales 
Maintain and enhance biodiversity and 
ecosystems that support resilience and can 
adapt to change (e.g. climate change) 

Close working with countryside and planning and 

ensuring our green spaces and cultural heritage is 

supported. 

Any new Delivery Option will also seek to develop 

partnerships and support landscape scale action, 

provide expert advice and seek to access new forms 

Future Generations Evaluation  
(includes Equalities and Sustainability 

Impact Assessments) 

P
age 41

mailto:iansaunders@monmouthshire.gov.uk


Well Being Goal  

Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 

Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to mitigate 

any negative impacts or better contribute to 

positive impacts? 

New Delivery Option managing all of its greenspaces 

and property to maintain and enhance biodiversity 

and promote resilience (in the context of it being a 

new entity).  

of funding to secure partnership action. 

A healthier Wales 
People’s physical and mental wellbeing is 
maximized and health impacts are 
understood 

Positive impact by ensuring quality services are 

provided by offering events and opportunities to 

encourage a fit and healthy lifestyle through leisure, 

sport, outdoor education, countryside and cultural 

access. 

The new offer will ensure that events and activities 

are also well signposted and the benefits of such 

activities demonstrated.  

 

Working with key partners through the Public Service 

Board will ensure that physical and mental health 

through activity is widely available and that the new 

Delivery Option is central to this by working directly 

with its communities. The work inside Creating An 

Active and Healthy Monmouthshire Group to connect 

to key acts such as Social Services Wales (Act) the 

Wellbeing Future Generations, Environment Act and 

also key strategies and drivers such as obesity 

including the Gwent Child Obesity Strategy, Get 

Wales Moving (replacing Climbing Higher), etc.  

Schools Sports Surveys will be undertaken 

biannually along with work across Active Gwent 

Sport Development/Youth Teams, cultural services, 

cycling and walking product, and exercise referral 

should all contribute to a positive impact. The new 

Delivery Option will have the ability to package the 

offer and market across our communities. 

A Wales of cohesive communities 
Communities are attractive, viable, safe 
and well connected 

The formation of a new Delivery Option will sustain 

and grow services. A known benefit of a new delivery 

option is improved community engagement and 

connection with local priorities - this can lead to 

service improvements and continuing to understand 

what matters to our customers and partners. 

To ensure the new Delivery Option has a structure 

which focuses on encouraging community cohesion 

as one of its social drivers.  

An extensive customer survey on, ‘what matters’, 

has been undertaken across all our services where, 

more than 1000 returns have been obtained. 

P
age 42



Well Being Goal  

Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 

Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to mitigate 

any negative impacts or better contribute to 

positive impacts? 

A globally responsible Wales 
Taking account of impact on global well-
being when considering local social, 
economic and environmental wellbeing 

The formulation of a new Delivery Option will have 

delegated responsibility to ensure high standards are 

met and maintained that do not conflict with the 

global drivers. 

Any decisions taken by the new Delivery Option will 

take into account global and well-being issues as 

part of its day to day processes. 

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving 
Welsh language 
Culture, heritage and Welsh language are 
promoted and protected.  People are 
encouraged to do sport, art and recreation 

The new Delivery Option will incorporate services 

which contribute greatly to the local culture, heritage 

and art, this will include the promotion and protection 

of the Welsh language which will form part of the 

core value and aim of the new organisation.            

One of the key drivers of the new Delivery Option will 

be the promotion of activity, health, culture and art 

and its structure and key developments will reflect 

that. 

The ability to react to the current markets and trends 

will enable the new organisation to position itself to 

meet the outcomes. 

A more equal Wales 
People can fulfil their potential no matter 
what their background or circumstances 

The new Delivery Option will provide services for all 

age ranges and deliver a comprehensive package for 

all of its communities.  

With the ability to better market and understand data 

there will be opportunities to target areas of the 

community that may not currently be aware of the 

offer. 

The ability to extend our current work towards 

access to facilities and services can be rolled out 

consistently across all service areas. 

 

2. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development? 

Sustainable Development 

Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met this 

principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not explain why. 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better contribute to 

positive impacts? 

P
age 43



Sustainable Development 

Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met this 

principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not explain why. 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better contribute to 

positive impacts? 

Balancing short 

term need with 

long term and 

planning for the 

future 

Business plans, investment opportunities, community, staff 

and member engagement are part of the next phase of 

developing the new Delivery Option for the future. During 

this period there is still a need to ensure the services 

continue to function. 

The reducing budgets and savings have led to some 
service areas reducing core hours of operation. There has 
been a concerted effort to assist by mobilising volunteers, 
making efficiencies and generating income. Where 
possible using existing staff were we have had vacancies. 

Working together 

with other 

partners to deliver 

objectives  

The services have some key partners from funding, grants 

and delivery of service. Some key partners include other 

LA’s, Public Health Wales, NRW, Sport & Art Wales, Visit 

Wales, Town & Community Council, Youth Offer partnership, 

Creating Active & Healthy Monmouthshire, Schools, Unions. 

During the new Delivery Option engagement process all 

major stakeholders and partners will be involved. 

The next phase of the new organization will include a full 
engagement programme for which resources and an 
interim structure will be put in place to move things 
forwards. 

Involving those 

with an interest 

and seeking their 

views 

The next phase of the establishment of the new Delivery 

Option will include a full engagement programme and 

resources and structure will be put in place. 

The engagement process will be constantly reviewed and 
evaluated to ensure the views of all those who have an 
interest are taken into account. 
 
An initial staff engagement day was organized following, 
the business mandate for 2016/17. All service areas were 
invited to participate and contribute to how they would like 
to be kept up-to-date and involved as we start to look at 
the process and present the options. A number of ‘staff 
champions’ have stepped forward to help with the process 
to communicate and support teams on the ground. An 
electronic newsletter is sent to all staff periodically when 
there is any further information or progress to share. This 
ensures all staff are receiving a consistent message and 
the champions have something to share with teams and 
collect any feedback in necessary.     

P
age 44



Sustainable Development 

Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met this 

principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not explain why. 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better contribute to 

positive impacts? 

Putting resources 

into preventing 

problems 

occurring or 

getting worse 

The business plans for each service are being developed 

with the site teams and managers. In the plans there are 

opportunities for growth and investment. 

If this is not done the services will be managing decline and 

income targets will not be maintained causing a downward 

spiral.  

The new Delivery Option will develop a new staffing 
structure and investigate how best to mobilise it’s 
incredible talented teams across the various business 
opportunities and services.  

Considering 

impact on all 

wellbeing goals 

together and on 

other bodies 

The opportunity to develop a new way of delivering services 

and sustaining their long term future should give the 

opportunity to better connect wellbeing outcomes to other 

partners and bodies. All the services being considered 

contribute to the wellbeing goals although some are more 

clearly defined than others. It is important that the services 

are able to clearly demonstrate and understand their input 

into the wellbeing goals – it is also important to consider the 

impact.  

One of the key drivers of the new Delivery Option will be 
the promotion of activity, health, culture and art and its 
structure and key developments will reflect that. 

 

3. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics?  Please explain the impact, the evidence you 

have used and any action you are taking below. For more detailed information on the protected characteristics, the Equality Act 2010 and the Welsh 

Language Standards that apply to Monmouthshire Council please follow this link:http://hub/corporatedocs/Equalities/Forms/AllItems.aspx  or contact 

Alan Burkitt on 01633 644010 or alanburkitt@monmouthshire.gov.uk 

Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

Describe any negative impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

P
age 45

http://hub/corporatedocs/Equalities/Forms/AllItems.aspx
mailto:alanburkitt@monmouthshire.gov.uk


Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

Describe any negative impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

Age Consider the impact on our community in 

relation to this e.g. how do we engage with 

older and younger people about our 

services, access issues etc. Also consider 

what issues there are for employment and 

training. 

n/a Asking our customers and partners 
what matters to them will evidently 
improve our services. If we are in a 

position in the future to redesign and 
invest in facilities we will see an 

improved offer.  

Disability What issues are there are around each of 

the disability needs groups e.g. access to 

buildings/services, how we provide services 

and the way we do this, producing 

information in alternative formats, 

employment issues.  

 

n/a Asking our customers and partners 
what matters to them will evidently 
improve our services. If we are in a 

position in the future to redesign and 
invest in facilities we will see an 

improved offer.  

Gender reassignment Consider the provision of inclusive services 

for Transgender people and groups. Also 

consider what issues there are for 

employment and training. 

n/a Asking our customers and partners 
what matters to them will evidently 
improve our services. If we are in a 

position in the future to redesign and 
invest in facilities we will see an 

improved offer. 

Marriage or civil 

partnership 

Same-sex couples who register as civil 
partners have the same rights as married 
couples in employment and must be 
provided with the same benefits available to 
married couples, such as survivor pensions, 
flexible working, maternity/paternity pay and 
healthcare insurance 
 

n/a Asking our customers and partners 
what matters to them will evidently 
improve our services. If we are in a 

position in the future to redesign and 
invest in facilities we will see an 

improved offer. 

P
age 46



Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

Describe any negative impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

Pregnancy or 

maternity 

In employment a woman is protected from 
discrimination during the period of her 
pregnancy and during any period of 
compulsory or additional maternity leave. In 
the provision of services, good and facilities, 
recreational or training facilities, a woman is 
protected from discrimination during the 
period of her pregnancy and the period of 26 
weeks beginning with the day on which she 
gives birth 
 

n/a Asking our customers and partners 
what matters to them will evidently 
improve our services. If we are in a 

position in the future to redesign and 
invest in facilities we will see an 

improved offer. 

Race Think about what the proposal will do to 

promote race equality with the aim of: 

eliminating unlawful discrimination, 

promoting equality of opportunity and 

promoting good relations between persons 

of different racial groups. Also think about 

the potential to affect racial groups 

differently. Issues to look at include 

providing translation/interpreting services, 

cultural issues and customs, access to 

services, issues relating to Asylum Seeker, 

Refugee, Gypsy &Traveller, migrant 

communities and recording of racist 

incidents etc. 

n/a Asking our customers and partners 
what matters to them will evidently 
improve our services. If we are in a 

position in the future to redesign and 
invest in facilities we will see an 

improved offer. 

Religion or Belief What the likely impact is e.g. dietary issues, 

religious holidays or days associated with 

religious observance, cultural issues and 

customs. Also consider what issues there 

are for employment and training. 

n/a Asking our customers and partners 
what matters to them will evidently 
improve our services. If we are in a 

position in the future to redesign and 
invest in facilities we will see an 

improved offer. 

P
age 47



Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

Describe any negative impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

Sex Consider what issues there are for men and 

women e.g. equal pay, responsibilities for 

dependents, issues for carers, access to 

training, employment issues. Will this impact 

disproportionately on one group more than 

another 

n/a Asking our customers and partners 
what matters to them will evidently 
improve our services. If we are in a 

position in the future to redesign and 
invest in facilities we will see an 

improved offer. 

Sexual Orientation Consider the provision of inclusive services 

for e.g. older and younger people from the 

Lesbian, Gay and Bi-sexual communities. 

Also consider what issues there are for 

employment and training. 

n/a Asking our customers and partners 
what matters to them will evidently 
improve our services. If we are in a 

position in the future to redesign and 
invest in facilities we will see an 

improved offer. 

 

Welsh Language 

Under the Welsh Language measure of 

2011, we need to be considering Welsh 

Language in signage, documentation, 

posters, language skills etc.and also the 

requirement to promote the language. 

n/a Our staff are engaging in improving 
their ability to communicate through the 
medium of Welsh. There is support for 
this centrally via a scheduled training 

programme to ensure our teams are in 
a good position to deliver the core aims 

within a set timeframe.   

 
4. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on important responsibilities of Corporate Parenting and safeguarding.  

Are your proposals going to affect either of these responsibilities?  For more information please see the guidance 
http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Safeguarding%20Guidance.docx  and for more on Monmouthshire’s Corporate Parenting Strategy 
see http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx 

 

 Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on safeguarding and 
corporate parenting 

Describe any negative impacts your 
proposal has on safeguarding and 
corporate parenting 

What will you do/ have you done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 
better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

P
age 48

http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Safeguarding%20Guidance.docx
http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx


Safeguarding   Safeguarding is about ensuring that 
everything is in place to promote the well-
being of children and vulnerable adults, 
preventing them from being harmed and 
protecting those who are at risk of abuse 
and neglect. 

n/a We will continue to prioritise our 
safeguarding measures, reflect on 

current practice and continue to train 
staff to the appropriate levels. 

Corporate Parenting  This relates to those children who are 
‘looked after’ by the local authority either 
through a voluntary arrangement with their 
parents or through a court order. The 
council has a corporate duty to consider 
looked after children especially and promote 
their welfare (in a way, as though those 
children were their own).  

n/a We will continue to work with our 
partners to assist in any way we can 

and add value to the current provisions.  

 
5. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal? 
 

The Cabinet report proposing the consideration of a new Delivery Option is founded upon the following reports: 
 

 Amion report regarding the Future  Options for MCC’s Cultural Services; 

 The Medium Term Financial Plan; 

 Anthony Collins Strategic Outline Case; 

 MCC Strategic Outline Case; 

 Outline Business Case produced by Kevin Ford working as an associate with Anthony Collins 

 
6. SUMMARY:  As a result of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have they 

informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future? 
 

 

The purpose of the proposed new Delivery Option is to ensure much valued local services are maintained and by their nature continue to provide 

employment, growth and an increasingly skilled workforce.  The proposals will enable services to be kept open but with more community focus and 

coordination, helping knit communities together. Activities in establishing the new Delivery Option will require positive engagement and coordination with 

community focused services as well as income generation and investment in key aspects of the business to ensure the culture and business thrives.  

Incorporated services will contribute greatly to our local culture, heritage and art with the promotion of activity, health and wellbeing forming part of its key 

drivers.   

 
7. ACTIONS: As a result of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, if applicable. 
 

P
age 49



What are you going to do  When are you going to do it?  Who is responsible  Progress  

Produce and present Strategic 

Outline Case  

September 2016 Ian Saunders On target 

Subject to approval Draft Business 

Plan will be developed 

September – December 2016 Ian Saunders  

Subject to approval Full Business 

Plan will be developed  

December – March 2017 Ian Saunders  

Subject to approval the ADM 

group structure will be established  

April 2017 Ian Saunders  

Subject to approval the ADM will 

go live 

September 2017 Ian Saunders  

 

8. MONITORING: The impacts of this proposal will need to be monitored and reviewed. Please specify the date at which you will evaluate the 

impact, and where you will report the results of the review. 

 

The impacts of this proposal will be evaluated on:  Ongoing  

 

9. VERSION CONTROL: The Future Generations Evaluation should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and 

refined throughout the decision making process.  It is important to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have 

considered and built in sustainable development wherever possible. 

 

Version 

No. 

Decision making stage  Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 

consideration 

1 Principle of the new Delivery Option  to be 

approved  

September 2016 This will demonstrate how we have considered and built in 

sustainable development throughout the evolution of a proposal. 

 

P
age 50


	Agenda
	5 Dyfodol Sir Fynwy : Opsiwn Newydd ar gyfer Cyflenwi Gwasanaethau Ieuenctid Twristiaeth , Hamdden , Diwylliant a Arfaethedig.
	Appendix A Strategic Outline Case Proposed new delivery options for Tourism, Leisure, Culture and Youth Services  160908
	Appendix B Proposed Interim Structure for New Delivery Model 160908
	Appendix C EQIA Proposed new delivery model 160908


